
CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

JULY 20, 2015 

     6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

2.  ROLL CALL  

     INVOCATION /  Pastor Neil Beasley with the Daphne United Methodist Church 

  

     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES: Council Meeting Minutes / July 6, 2015  

 

                                                     Council Work Session Minutes / July 13, 2015 

               

PRESENTATION:    Beautification 3rd Quarter Award / Coastal Bank and Trust of Alabama / Kelly Lankford  

                                      District  5 

                                                      

4. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry    

Review minutes / July 13
th
  

1.)   Ordinances: 

        a.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Daphne Art Center Roof Repairs  /  Ordinance 2015-40 

 

        b.)   Appropriation of Funds:  PD Generator Replacement/Repairs  /  Ordinance 2015-41 

   

        c.)   Additional Appropriation of Funds:  For Contract Extension for Grant Management for Tiawasee Creek  

               (CIAP)  /  Ordinance 2015-42 

 

        d.)   Additional Appropriation of Funds:  D’Olive Boulevard Resurfacing  /  Ordinance 2015-43 

   

        e.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Daphne High School Project:  Equipment to Record Council Meetings /    

                                                        Ordinance 2015-44 
 

2.)   Resolutions:  
       a.)   Credit Card – Senior Programs & Recreation Department  /  Resolution 2015-47 

 

       b.)   Engineering Contract for Recreational Facilities  /  Resolution 2015-48 

 

3.)   Financial Reports: 
 Treasurers Report  /  June 2015 

 

 Sales & Use Tax Collections  /  May 2015 

 

 Lodging Tax Collections  /  May 2015 

 

 

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis  

Review minutes / July 6
th
  

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell   

 

1



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               JULY 6, 2015                                            PAGE   2 
 

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott  

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

a.)  Review Beautification minutes / June 3
rd

  

 

b.)  Review Daphne Museum minutes / May 11
th
  

 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    

A. BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS  – Adrienne Jones   

Review minutes  / June 4
th
   /  Staff Report  /  July 2

nd
 meeting 

 

B. DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY – Conaway   

 

C. INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD – Davis  

 

D. LIBRARY BOARD - Lake  

 

E. PLANNING COMMISSION – Scott 

      

F. RECREATION BOARD – LeJeune 

                  

G. UTILITY BOARD – Fry 

 

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

 

7. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

    

8. DEPARTMENT HEAD’S REPORT 

 

9. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 

                                              
10. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 

 

11. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

 

 

        RESOLUTIONS: 
 

a.)  Resolution 2015-45. . . . . . . . . . . .Declaring Certain Property Surplus & Authorize the Mayor 

                                                               to Dispose of Such Property / 2000 Ford F 150 / Caterpillar 

                                                               Backhoe 

 

b.)  Resolution 2015-46. . . . . . . . . . . .Support of MPO Surface Transportation Funds to Install  

                                                               Intersection Improvements on County Road 13 at Sehoy Boulevard 

                                                               and Long Vue Drive 

 

 

2



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               JULY 6, 2015                                            PAGE   3 
 

 

   c.)   Resolution 2015-47. . . . . . . . . . . . Authorizing Issuance of Credit Cards: Senior Programs 

                                                                   Recreation Department 

 

 

   d.)   Resolution 2015-48. . . . . . . . . . . .Daphne Recreational Facilities /  Engineering Services Fee 

                                                                   Schedule 

 

 
 

    

       ORDINANCES:  
 

        1
ST

  READ    
 

a.)  Ordinance 2015-40. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds:  Daphne Art Center Roof 

                                                                        Repair 

 

b.)  Ordinance 2015-41. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Justice Center Generator 

                                                                         Replacement/Repair  

 

c.)  Ordinance 2015-42. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Additional Appropriation of Funds: Grant Management 

                                                                         For the Tiawasee Creek Coastal Impact Assistance 

                                                                         Program (CIAP), National Fish and Wildlife  

                                Foundation (NFWF) & AL Department of Environmental 

                         Management (ADEM) Grant Tiawasee Creek Watershed 

         Restoration 

 

d.)  Ordinance 2015-43. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Additional Appropriation: D’Olive Boulevard Resurfacing  

 

e.)  Ordinance 2015-44. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds:  Daphne High School Project: 

  Recording of City Council Meetings 

                      

      
  

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

 

13.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LAKE    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT CONAWAY  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES     PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS      PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

4



JULY 6, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

                                                                                       

1.    CALL TO ORDER: 
There being a quorum present Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present: Mayor Haygood;  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Melissa Wilt, Assistant City Clerk;  Jay Ross, City Attorney; 

David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; David McKelroy, Recreation 

Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Kelli Kichler, Finance 

Director/Treasurer; Tonja Young, Library Director; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Ashley Campbell, Environmental 

Programs Manager; B.J. Eringman, Deputy Public Works Director; Dorothy Morrison, DRA and Beautification 

Committee; Willie Robison, BZA;  Larry Cooke, BZA; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Bob Segalla, Utility 

Board; Tim Patton, Volkert & Associates. 

Absent:  Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge; Richard Merchant, Building Official. 

 

INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Pastor Joshua Sellers of Eastern Shore Baptist Church gave the invocation. 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES:    

June 15, 2015 Council Meeting Minutes 
There being no corrections the June 15, 2015 minutes were approved as written.  

 

 PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 

1.)   Rezoning:   Cadence Bank 

  Location:   One quarter mile south of the intersection of County Road 64 and Pollard Rd. 

  Present Zoning:  R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential District 

  Requested Zoning:  PUD, Planned Unit Development 

  Recommendation:  Unanimous favorable 

 

2.)  Pre-Zoning:  Cadence Bank 

 Location:   One quarter mile south of the intersection of County Road 64 and Pollard Rd. 

 Present Zoning:  RSF-2, Single Family District, Baldwin County District 15 

 Requested Zoning:  PUD, Planned Unit Development, City of Daphne 

 Recommendation:   Unanimous favorable 

 

3.)  Annexation:  Cadence Bank 

 Location:   One quarter mile south of the intersection of County Road 64 and Pollard Rd. 

 Recommendation:  Unanimous favorable 

 

The Public Hearings were pulled from the agenda per a letter by owner. 

5



JULY 6, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The next meeting will be next Monday at 4:30 p.m. 

 

B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Davis 

The committee met before the council meeting, and the minutes will be in the next packet.  The next meeting will be 

the first Monday in August. 

 

C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The minutes for the June 15
th
 meeting are in the packet.  The next meeting will be July 20

th
 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The minutes for the June 15
th
 meeting are in the packet.  The next meeting will be July 20

th
 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The committee met this afternoon.  The discussed the newly acquired park, and are moving forward with plans for the 

park. 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No report. 

 

     B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The minutes for the June 24
th
 meeting are in the packet.  The next meeting is July 22

nd
 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

    C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

 The minutes for the June 22
nd

 meeting are in the packet.  He has asked the Baldwin County Economic Development 

Alliance to send council their quarterly report.  The next meeting will be July 27
th
 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

    D.   Library Board – Lake 

The next meeting will be July 9
th
 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6



JULY 6, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

    E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The minutes for the May 28
th
 meeting are in the packet along with the staff report for the June 25

th
 meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

They had the first meeting of the Park Plan Team, and it went well.  They agreed on some things, and are waiting on 

Volkert with regard to the survey work.  They are moving quickly, and will be talking about pricing which will 

determine if they go with Trione or Park Drive. The next meeting will be Wednesday at 6:30 p.m. 

 

  G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The minutes for the May 22
nd

 meeting are in the packet. The next meeting will be July 29
th
 at 5:00 p.m.   

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

Mayor Haygood said the July 4
th
 fireworks went very well.  There was one incident where an attendee set off his own 

fireworks which struck  a seven year old boy in the back.  He gave kudos to the firemen that attended the boy. 

 

 

7.  CITY ATTORNEY REPORT: 

Mr. Ross asked council to call an executive session at the end of the meeting, and there will be no vote afterward.  The 

meeting should last 30 minutes. 

 

 

 

 MOTION BY Councilman Scott to set a Public Hearing for August 17, 2015 and to approve 

advertising to consider the following: 

 

  a.)   Pre-zone:    The Bills’ No. 2, LLC 

         Located:        Southwest corner of the intersection of Champions Way   

                                   and  AL Hwy. 181 

         Present zoning:   RSF-1, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin 

County District 15 

         Requested zoning:  PUD, Planned Unit Development, City of Daphne 

         Recommendation:  Unanimous favorable 

 

  b.)   Annexation:   The Bills’ No. 2, LLC 

          Location:   Southwest corner of the intersection of Champions Way  

                                           and AL Hwy. 181 

          Recommendation:     Unanimous favorable 

 

Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

AYE    Lake,  Fry, Scott, LeJeune, Davis, Conaway                                    NAY    Rudicell 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

7



JULY 6, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

 

8.   DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS: 

James White – Fire Chief – gave an update on Fire Station #3 saying that the sheet metal will be hung this week. 

 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – gave kudos to civilians who found a three year old walking in the neighborhood and 

called the police. He also gave kudos to the Police and Fire Departments on handling the stressful situation where they 

found the mother deceased in her apartment. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – thanked the Fire, Police, Public Works and Recreation Departments for their 

help with the July 4
th
 fireworks display.  He also gave the sports schedule for Trione Sports Complex. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Department Director – reported that starting tomorrow County Road 13 and County 

Road 64 will be completely closed down after the morning commute.  It will be closed from four – six weeks max.  It 

will reopen before August 17
th
 when school starts. 

 

9.  CITY CLERK REPORT:  
No report. 

 

10.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Ms. Debra Few – Sehoy POA -  spoke regarding traffic along Highway 181, County Road 13 and Champion’s way 

with the proposed office complex at Champion’s Way and the one coming on Highway 181.  She was concerned with 

what will happen to the residential area along these corridors. 

 

 

11.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Resolution 2015-43. . . . . . . . . . . . Requesting the Eastern Shore Metropolitan Planning Organization 

                                                  Fund a Project to Construct a Transit Facility in Daphne for Which 

                                                  The City of Daphne Will Provide the 20% Match 

 

b.)  Resolution 2015-44. . . . . . . . . . . . Acceptance of Streets and/or Rights-of-Way / A Portion of Ray’s  

                                                                Lane Southwest of Bradbury Circle – South of Lake Forest   

                                                                Subdivision 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2015-43 and 2015-44. Seconded by 

Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-43. Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

8



JULY 6, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-44.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

ORDINANCES: 
 

          2
ND 

 READ   
a.)  Ordinance 2015-33. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds / Daphne Master Planning &  

                                                                   Pre-Design  

 

b.)  Ordinance 2015-34. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Setting Forth the Authorization of Certain City Officials  

                                                                                as Designated Signatories on Various Accounts of the  

       City of Daphne 

 

c.)   Ordinance 2015-35. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds / Property Purchase / Lake Forest  

                                                                               Lot 62-Sub Unit 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2015-33, 2015-34 and 2013-35.  Seconded by 

Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION  CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-33.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-34.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-35.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

ORDINANCE 2015-36 IS A 1
ST

 READ. 
 

 

 

 

 

9



JULY 6, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

 

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilman Scott said he hoped everyone had a good 4
th
 of July.  He said that Public Works is doing a good job 

mowing the new park.  He mentioned that at the Windsor entrance there is dead grass, and the contractor is working on 

fixing the problem. 

 

Councilman LeJeune – said that Rolling Hill Drive has dead sod also, and the contractor is working on that fixing that 

too.  He asked everyone to pray for the family involved in the tragedy, and the officers that dealt with stressful 

situation today.  

 

Councilman Davis thanked those who voiced concern with transportation and traffic, and the IDB will continue to 

look at the problems.  It is part of council’s job to have a progressive plan. 

 

Councilman Rudicell mentioned that council had to take care of the current citizens, and it will be six weeks before 

the Public Hearing for the pre-zoning and annexation of the property on Champion’s Way where citizens can express 

their concern.  There are ramifications if plans for the project do not go well. 

 

Councilman Lake spoke regarding the DISC project saying that giving of property to corporations is corporate 

welfare.  He said his prayers go out to the family and Police Officers involved with the tragedy today. He also spoke 

regarding annexing the businesses on Highway 13, and a problem with people parking in the medians in Lake Forest. 

 

Councilman Fry said he hoped everyone had a good 4
th
 of July.  He thanked the department heads, and asked them to 

relay to their staff his thanks for functioning as efficiently as possible. 

 

Mayor Haygood reported that the Library’s summer read programs have been a success.  Just in the month of June 

there were 5,184 books read between the preschoolers, juniors and tweens. 

 

Council President Conaway thanked Richard Johnson for the improvements on Wilson Avenue. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn into Executive Session to discuss pending legal actions.  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

The city attorney, Jay Ross, stated that the above stated reason for going into Executive Session is an 

appropriate reason according to the Open Meetings Act.  The session will take 30 minutes. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 

Rudicell  Aye     LeJeune  Aye 

Lake   Aye     Davis   Aye 

Fry   Aye     Conaway  Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

 

10



JULY 6, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

 

 

 

 

13.   ADJOURN: 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:21 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                  Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________  _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes,     Tommie Conaway,     

City Clerk      Council President 

11



JULY 13, 2015 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

   

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron 

Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis.  

 

Also present: Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Melissa Wilt, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City 

Attorney; Kevin, Boucher, Adams & Reese; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Don Ouellette, 

BZA; Toni Fassbender, IDB; Denis Kearney, IDB; Jeff Ramsland, IDB; Taylor Ryder, BRATS; 

Sarah Hart, ESMPO. 

 

Absent:  Mayor Haygood. 

 

Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:40 p.m. 

 

1.  DISCUSS:  DAPHNE TRANSIT HUB 

 

Mr. Richard Johnson, Public Works Director and Mr. Taylor Ryder, BRATS, gave the following 

information regarding a transit hub in the City of Daphne: 

1. The location they like the best is the Civic Center parking lot in front of Patriots Point   

2. They would need 25-30 parking places for riders to park 

3. They will need four (4) parking places for the buses 

4. The lease would be for 40 years 

5. They will ask the MPO for funding of $250,000 

6. The match is $50,000 in which the land provided for the transit hub could be the match for the 

project and the land can be donated 

 

The proposed start date is October 1, 2015 and the proposed completion date is December 31, 2016. 

The MPO just needs to approve the funding of the project which is on their agenda for the next 

meeting, and then council will make the decision on location and design for the hub. 

 

(A handout of the material discussed is attached to the minutes.) 

 

 

2. DAPHNE INNOVATION 
+
SCIENCE COMPLEX 

Mrs. Fassbender requested council to e-mail questions they would like answered to her or 

Councilman Davis as there are so many components to the project at this time, and she is not 

knowledgeable enough on all the components to give all the answers.  She wants to make sure that 

the questions are answered accurately so the council could have a better understanding of the project.   

She said the board could come back at the August 10
th

 work session with the answers. 

 

Council President Conaway requested council to send their questions to Mrs. Fassbender or 

Councilman Davis. 

 

 

 

 

12



JULY 13, 2015 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e2
 

 

3.   ANYTHING ELSE DEEMED NECESSARY 

No other business to discuss. 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED 

AT 7:40 P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,         Certification of Presiding Officer:  

                                                     

                               

___________________________         _____________________________                                                                                  

Rebecca A. Hayes,          Tommie Conaway,                                                                 

City Clerk       Council President                           

  

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
JULY 13, 2015 

4:30 P.M. 
 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:30 p.m.  Present were Chairman Randy Fry, Councilwoman Mrs. 
Conaway, Councilman Joseph Davis, Councilman Ron Scott, Councilman Pat Rudicell, Councilman John Lake, 
Councilman Robin LeJeune,  Finance Director Kelli Kichler, Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson, Human 
Resource Director Vickie Hinman, and Revenue Officer Jamie Smith.  
 
Also in attendance were City Clerk Rebecca Hayes, City Attorney Kevin Boucher, Public Works Director Richard 
Johnson, Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen, Recreation Director David McKelroy, Public Works 
Accountant Denise Penry, Environmental Program Manager Ashley Campbell, Lt. Ric Yelding, and Mr. Larry 
Cooke, BZA.  
 

I.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
No Public Participation 
 

II.      BUSINESS LICENSE REPORT 
 

1. Report: New Business Licenses – June, 2015    
      
The Business Licenses Report was included in the packet. Total business license issued YTD is 4,167 - up 392 
from last year 
 

102 - Total Business License issued in June 2015_  -  up 2 from June 2014 ( 100 licenses issued).   

   34 - Renewals – out of the 102  

   58 - New businesses with15 of those having a physical location in Daphne and 

   10 - Prior year licenses.   
 
Mrs. Smith included addresses for the seven new businesses with a physical location in Daphne. Mrs. Smith 
reviewed the delinquency report and noted that Code Enforcement issued warnings resulting in 28 businesses 
becoming compliant and $4,416 revenues collected.  
 

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

       A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
Mrs. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
 
Positions      Status 
Planner (Community Development)   Reviewing applications 
PT Marketing Coordinator    Interviewing 
Executive Assistant     Interviewing 
IT Computer Services Technician   Interviewing  
PSW Mowing      DOH:  7/11/2015 
PT Library Aide      DOH:  7/2/2015 
Firefighter      Posting: 7/6-7/20  
PT School Crossing Guard (2)    Posting: 7/6-7/20  
PSW Sr. Grounds (Internal)    Posting: 7/2-7/10 
 
Mrs. Hinman noted that a student intern would start work with the City on July 16, 2015.  Mrs. Hinman stated the 
intern will work on GIS projects through the Building Inspection Department.  
 
    

21



Finance Minutes - Final.doc   

Safety Committee 
Physicals for primary drivers of 15-Passenger vans are to be scheduled in July.  The committee was asked to 
discuss the smoking at the entrance of Recreation/SAIL Site.  It was recommended the smoking area be 
relocated and the table and trashcans be moved farther away from the entrance.  Also, committee members are 
to report at the next meeting that “No Firearms” notices are at the entrance(s) of every City facility.   
Next Safety Committee meeting is July 29, 2015 @ 10:00 a.m. 
 
HR projects/meetings: 

 Oral Board interviews for Detective on July 9, 2015 

 “Save the date” notices for the Employee Benefits and Wellness Fair have been mailed to vendors and 
sponsors 

 

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

A. Approve previous months minutes 
The previous minutes were approved with one correction – Mr. Rudicell was not in attendance at the June 8, 
2015 meeting. 

 
B. Financial Reports 

 
1. Treasurer’s Report:  June, 2015 

    Mrs. Henson reviewed the Treasurer’s Report and noted:  

 Total Unrestricted Funds - $10,176,293                   

 Decrease from Last Year’s Unrestricted Funds - $153,483   

 Total City Funds - $18,181,867    

 # of months of Unrestricted cash to cover monthly operating Expenses & Debt Service – 4.6 months 
compared to the previous year -  4.7 months 

Ms. Kichler noted that reimbursement requests in the amount of $285,000 had been submitted to FEMA and 
other projects would be submitted soon. 
     

The Treasurer’s Report as of June 30, 2015 Total Unrestricted Funds - $10,176,293             
and Total City Funds - $18,181,867was presented to be filed for audit.  
 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes: May, 2015 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Sales & Use Tax Reports and Graphs: $1,198,226.99  was collected for May 2015: 

 YTD Variance over Budget – ($16,844.34)  

 Percent change from last year’s collections   -1.7%  
 

3.  Lodging Tax Collections, May, 2015 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Lodging Tax Collections Report and noted the collections for  May 2015 were 
$108,715.74 which is up $1,560.19  from May’s 2014’s collections of $107,155.55.  

 YTD Variance over Budget:    $54,648.06 

 Percentage change from last year’s collections:  + 1.4% 
 

 4.  Lodging Tax Fund : Statement of Rev over Exp, May, 2015  
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Lodging Tax report and noted that the Recreation balance is $624,297 and the 
Bayfront balance is $1,999,496.  Mr. Scott asked Mr. Lake if he was the liaison with Village Point.  Mr. Lake said 
he was when needed. Mr. Scott discussed they had requested information on a Master Plan for the Bayfront 
properties.  Discussion continued on potential plans for the Bayfront properties and forwarding the discussion to 
the Buildings and Property Committee meeting. 

 
5.  Correction/Court Fund Report, May, 2015 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Correction/ Court Fund Report and reported that $18,332.15 has been transferred to 
date from the court portion of the fund to the corrections for the purchase of inmate meals and equipment.   

 
 
 

22



Finance Minutes - Final.doc   

6. General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule, March 2015  
Ms. Kichler reviewed the Budgetary Comparison Schedule through March 31, 2015 showing Variance (under) 
over budget and the percentage of the budget used.  Ms. Kichler stated that Finance has reconciled and closed 
through March in Munis and all other funds were reconciled and closed through April except the General Fund 
and she hoped to complete this week.  Ms. Kichler stated that the FY2016 Budget forms would be sent out to 
Departments tomorrow.  Discussion continued on the percentage of budget used.  Mrs. Henson noted that 
insurance is paid annually so the insurance line items would be at 100%.  Mrs. Henson explained that other 
seasonal expenditures would not be at 50% for March but noted that the majority of the budget  line items 
should be at 50%. 

 
7. Financial Statements: 

a. General Fund Balance Sheet & Statement of Rev Over Exp , March 2015 
b. Debt Service Fund Statement of Rev Over Exp, April 2015 
c. Debt Service Summary Activity for General Fund through April 2015    
d. Debt Service Summary Activity for Enterprise Funds through April 2015    
e. Agency Funds Combining Statement of Assets and Liabilities, March 2015 
f. Special Revenue Funds Balance Sheet,  April 2015 
g. Special Revenue Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

in Fund Balance,  April 2015  
h. Capital Projects Funds Balance Sheet, April 2015  
i. Capital Projects Funds Statement of Rev Over Exp, April 2015 

 
Ms. Kichler reviewed the statements listed above.  Discussion continued on the statements.  Ms. Kichler said if 
there were any questions to just let her know. 

 
8. Enterprise Funds Statements: 

a. Statement of Net Position, April, 2015 
b. Enterprise Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 

Position, April 2015 
 
Ms. Kichler reviewed the Enterprise statements and pointed out that the Solid Waste Department had been 
moved to the Garbage & Recycling Enterprise Fund as approved in the FY2015 Budget.  Ms. Kichler stated that 
a transfer in the amount of $239,018 from the General Fund entry was required to cover the expenditures made 
in the Solid Waste Department.  Ms. Kichler noted that Garbage and Recycling would now be called the Solid 
Waste Fund.  Ms. Kichler stated that a transfer of $474,379 is required through March, 2015 for all the 
Enterprise Funds (Solid Waste - $239,018, Civic Center-$156,603, and Bay Front-$78,758).  Mr. Johnson noted 
that there was a proposed garbage fee increase for the FY2015 Budget but that increase did not pass.  
Discussion continued on the garbage fee. 
 
Mr. Scott asked Ms. Kichler if she would provide standards on what the City should maintain in reserves like 
Mrs. Briley, the previous Finance Director had done.  Ms. Kichler said she would provide that information.  Ms. 
Kichler said she had talked to a representative at ALDOT and he would be sending a final letter on what is 
needed for the City to receive the $327,000 due. 
 
Ms. Kichler discussed that she had got the Direct Deposit equipment working which would make the daily 
deposit process more efficient. Ms. Kichler said this would reduce the number of trips that have to be made to 
the bank.  Ms. Kichler said she is researching what is needed to get the City prepared to accept credit cards. 

 
9. Bills Paid Reports –  June, 2015 

The Bills Paid Report was presented in the packet. 
 

C. Appropriation Request: (Ordinance) 
 

GENERAL FUND: 
1. Daphne Art Center Roof Repairs- $13,000 

 
Mr. Fry noted this was forwarded from the Building & Property Committee.  Mr. Johnson reviewed the roof repair 
project for the Daphne Art Center.  Mr. Johnson noted that Mr. Richard Merchant, Building Inspection Officer 

23



Finance Minutes - Final.doc   

had reviewed the vendor’s quotes and reviewed the vendor’s credentials to make sure they were permitted and 
had proper license.   
 

Motion by Mr. Davis to appropriate  $13,000  from the General Fund for Daphne Art 
Center roof repairs.  Seconded by Mr. Lake.  Motion carried. 

 
2. Justice Center Generator : 

a. Converting the whole system to Natural Gas-$104,738    
 or  

b. Replace just the Diesel Generator (keep the old engine)-$24,380   
 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the e-mail received from the insurance adjuster and noted it looked like the 
recommendation from the insurance adjuster would be to reimburse the City for rental cost for the temporary 
generator and to replace the old generator.  Mrs. Henson noted the engine part of the generator system is still 
functional so insurance will not be replacing that portion.  Lt. Yelding noted the engine is 21 years old but it is 
still working.   Mrs. Henson stated that Lt. Yelding just received the quote for a new diesel generator - $24,380.  
Lt. Yelding discussed that the Caterpillar technician started tearing down the old unit earlier this week to give the 
required final evaluation on the old unit.  Mrs. Henson noted that the labor cost for the teardown will be 
submitted to insurance for reimbursement once received.  Mr. Davis asked would the rental cost be reimbursed.  
Mrs. Henson stated the insurance should cover most if not all of the rental cost.  Mr. Scott discussed purchasing 
a new natural gas generator.   Mr. Johnson discussed applying for a Hazard Mitigation grant to fund the 
purchase of the natural gas generator.  Mr. Johnson said during a storm situation natural gas has a much higher 
chance of being operational which is important since the Justice Center daily operations are critical.  Mr. 
Johnson stated the grant would be a 75% funding and require a 25% match.  Mr. Johnson noted it may take 1-3 
years to potentially be awarded but the City has been successful in acquiring other generators through this grant 
process.  Discussion continued that the deductible is $5,000 and the cost of the new Natural Gas generator 
would be approximately $105,000.  Mr. Fry recommended that we proceed with the purchase of the Diesel 
replacement generator then proceed with Mr. Johnson applying for the Hazard Mitigation grant to purchase a 
new Natural Gas generator for the Justice Center. 

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to appropriate  $24,380 from the General Fund to purchase a new 
replacement diesel generator with cost to be offset by insurance proceeds.  Seconded 
by Mr. LeJeune.  Motion carried. 

 
3. Grant Management for Tiawasee Creek(CIAP)-$15,000 Additional funding for contract 

extension  
Mrs. Ashley Campbell stated the City is already under contract for grant management services with Grant 
Management LLC for the Tiawasee Creek project for over $1 million. The City anticipates receiving an additional 
$1 million in grant monies making the new grant total $2 million (additional $300,00 for the Tiawasee Creek 
project and  $700,000 for the Trione Park Watershed Enhancement project).  Mrs. Campbell discussed that 
during the project they found some additional work needed to be done to complete the Tiawasee Creek 
restoration project.  Mrs. Campbell stated that on the $300,000 grant that $180,000 is available from ADEM  319 
program with the  40% match of $120,000 coming from NFWF (National Fish and Wildlife Foundation.   Mrs. 
Campbell noted that grant approval  is pending.  Mrs. Campbell discussed  the need for additional Grant 
management services for these additional grant monies.  Mrs. Campbell and Mr. Johnson discussed the 
guidance that Ms. Cara Stallman, Grant Management LLC  has provided so far in the grant process and that 
these services were needed.  Mrs. Campbell requested that an appropriation of $15,000 be made to fund the 
additional grant services needed subject to approval being issued from ADEM. Mrs. Campbell discussed that 
Ms. Stallman did say that she had a set fee to oversee all grants and that she does this for other municipalities.  
Mrs. Campbell said this is something that could be considered in the future.  

 

Motion by Mr. Lake to appropriate  $15,000  from the General Fund for additional grant 
management services from Grant Management LLC for the additional grant monies 
awarded for the Tiawasee Creek (CIAP) grant project .  Seconded by Mrs.  Conaway.  
Motion carried. 
       
       

24



Finance Minutes - Final.doc   

D. Credit Card: Senior Programs & Recreation (Resolution) 
Mrs. Henson discussed that several City departments have credit cards assigned to them for training, travel, 
and necessary online purchases.  Mrs. Henson stated that the Senior program has historically had a lot of 
employee reimbursements due to the purchase of craft items for senior projects and other related senior events.  
A credit card for this department would make the purchasing/payment of these event related expenditures more 
efficient.  Mr. Davis asked if there were limitations put on the credit cards.  Mrs. Henson stated each card  has a 
set dollar cap and the expenditures are monitored monthly when the payment is made. 

 

Motion by Mr. Lake to authorize a new credit card be issued for Senior Programs & 
Recreation .  Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 
    
          E.  Surplus Sale Summary  
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Surplus Sale summary report for the current sale.  Mrs. Henson stated that almost all 
the equipment has been paid for and picked up.  After payment is received for all surplus equipment this sale 
will net the City $25,062.90.  Mrs. Henson noted she had included the Buyer’s City, State, and number of bids 
and hits just for informational purposes.  Mrs. Henson noted this lets you know how popular the item is and 
where our buyers are traveling from. 

 
          F.  Appropriation:TV Equipment/Recording cost for Council Meetings–DHS Project - $10,000  

                 (Ordinance) 
 Ms. Kichler said the Mayor had relayed to her that Rick Whitehead, IT Coordinator had obtained some quotes 
for the equipment needed so we would know approximately what the appropriation amount would be.  Ms. 
Kichler stated that the Mayor said Daphne High School could not schedule the class until they knew the City 
was committed to funding this project.  Discussion continued that the City needed to appropriate the monies to 
show commitment.  Mr. Davis asked about replacing the microphone in the Council Chambers.  Mrs. Hayes said 
she had some quotes for microphones and she would e-mail the quotes to the Council members. 

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to appropriate up to $10,000 to purchase equipment needed to 
assist the Daphne High School project with recording Council Meetings and authorize 
the Mayor to execute all related documents.  Seconded by Mr. Davis.  Motion carried. 
     

           G.  Volkert Contract for Recreational Facilities – Master Plan & Design Engineering (Resolution) 

Mr. Tim Patton, Volkert Engineer discussed the next step in the process is obtaining the Master plan.  
Discussion was made on receiving the scope of work in the Master plan so that the engineering cost can be set.  
Mr. Patton explained that engineering cost cannot be estimated or known yet until the Master Plan is made and 
estimated construction cost can be obtained. 
 
Mr. Johnson explained that the City already has accepted contract terms with these three firms.  Mr. Johnson 
stated that once the Master plan is approved then the payment method can be selected.  Discussion continued 
on the three different methods the engineering fees could be applied:  cost plus, percentage, or fixed amount.  
Mr. Johnson discussed the City incorporating the contract terms that are already in place with these three 
engineering firms for this project.  Mr. Scott agreed that the City should adopt the already accepted contract 
terms for engineering work with these three firms then once the scope of work is approved by the Mayor and 
Council the payment basis can be selected.  Discussion continued that Mr. Johnson could recommend the 
payment process be either percentage base, cost plus, or fixed amount. 
 
Mr. LeJeune stated he wanted to make sure the Mayor’s concerns were addressed.  Discussion continued that 
the scope of work would be brought back to the Mayor and Council for approval.  Mr. Johnson said he would get 
with Mr. Patton, Mr. McKelroy, and Mr. LeJeune to provide a clean draft for the scope of work for the Mayor to 
review. 

Motion by Mr. Scott that: 
1) the City adopt the already accepted contracted terms for engineering services  with 
the three approved engineering firms for the Recreational Facilities project, and  
2) the payment basis (cost plus, percentage, or fixed amount)  be approved once the 
scope of work is approved by the Mayor and Council, and 
3) the Mayor is authorized to execute all related documents. 
Seconded by Mr. Davis.  Motion carried. 

25



Finance Minutes - Final.doc   

 
 
 
 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A.  D’Olive Boulevard paving – part of North Main Street project  
Mr. Johnson presented a handout with information on the option to extend the North Main Street paving project 
to an adjoining street D’Olive Boulevard - $33,693.  Mr. Johnson said at the cost would be less than 10% of the 
total project cost. Discussion continued on the scope of the project.  Mr. Boucher, City attorney stated that the 
City would need to obtain quotes independent of the current project.  Discussion was made that an 
appropriation may need to be made if the N. Main Street project does not come in under budget.  Mr. Johnson 
stated he would obtain two quotes for the D’Olive Boulevard paving. 
 

B. Personnel Pay Plan Upgrade 
Mr. Fry stated that the Personnel Pay Plan Upgrade Ordinance would be a second read at the next Council 
meeting.  Mr. Fry asked if there was any discussion on the ordinance.  Mr.  Scott discussed moving forward with 
the already proposed ordinance.  Mr. Johnson discussed the different draft proposals and that he did not feel his 
salary was set equitably with other directors salaries.  Ms. Kichler reviewed that the directors were also 
evaluated at what step in their pay grade they were hired in at on the pay scale.  Ms. Kichler stated that the 
directors that maintained the larger increase was due to the fact that they were hired in at the bottom of their 
grade while some were hired in at the middle or higher step of their grade.  Discussion continued on the plan.  
Mr. Davis emphasized the need for all seven Council members to receive the same information so a decision 
can be made.  Pat asked about the other proposals.  Ms. Kichler noted that all three proposals were given to all 
Council members at the last meeting.  Ms. Conaway stated she had spoken to the Mayor on the proposal and 
noted she needs additional information to review before making a decision.  Mrs. Thigpen discussed that some 
of the directors were far below the average and that the employees needed to know that addressing the pay 
plan was a priority for Council.   Mr. Scott agreed that there were four director’s salaries that were far below the 
average than the others and that needs to be corrected.  Mr. Scott explained that when the Public Works 
Director and Finance Director were hired they were able to be hired in at a higher step in their grade but there 
are four directors that were promoted from within and  this process required them to be hired at a lower step and 
therefore skewed their salary.   Mr. Lake recommended the proposal be withdrawn until they have a chance to 
discuss with the Mayor. Discussion continued that the ordinance would be tabled until further review could be 
made. 
 

Motion by Mr. Lake to withdraw the City of Daphne Pay Plan Amendment Ordinance 
until further review.  Seconded by Mr. Davis.   Aye – to withdraw: Lake / Conaway / 
Davis / LeJeune.  Nay – to withdraw:  Fry / Rudicell / Scott. 

 
VI. ADJOURN   The meeting adjourned at 6:28p.m.  

 
 
 

26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 

Monday, July 6, 2015 

4:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall- Executive Conference Room 

Committee Minutes 

Present: Councilman Joe Davis; Councilman Randy Fry; Councilwoman Tommie Conaway;  

Councilman Pat Rudicell; Melissa Wilt, Assistant City Clerk (recording secretary); Richard 

Johnson, Public Works Director; Victoria Phelps, Lake Forest Property Owners Association; 

Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Councilman Ron Scott; Councilman Robin Lejeune; 

Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Elliot Riser, Former President POA Lake View 

Townhomes; Donna Sumerlin, Lake View Townhomes; Peter & Glenys Maschke, Lake View 

Townhomes; Councilman John Lake (Arrived at 4:37pm). 

Absent: Mayor Dane Haygood; Rick Whitehead, IT Coordinator; Tom Walker, Daphne Fire 

Department; Richard Merchant, Building Official 

The meeting was brought to order at 4:29 pm by Chairman Joe Davis. 

1. Public Participation 

 

Elliot Riser, Former President POA and current resident of Lake View townhomes, addressed 

concerns with the plans for the new park; specifically parking situation and overall appearance - 

trash cans, portable restrooms, etc.  

 

Chairman Davis suggested more detail can be discussed at the Public Works meeting.  

 

Victoria Phelps, Lake Forest POA, mentioned appreciation of the progress of the park and that it 

will be a nice asset for all citizens of Daphne.  

 

Councilman John Lake arrived at 4:37 pm 

 

2. Lake Forest Park Report  

 

Richard Johnson commented that Public Works has completed the mowing and 50% of cleaning 

out dead trees. Drainage has been repaired to keep water moving and wooden bridge has been 

determined serviceable and will be repaired for pedestrian use.  

 

In response to public participation concerns, Richard said they were looking into nice looking, 

park style receptacles and they want to create a uniform look. 

 

The Committee discussed ensuring continuity with design of signage, trash cans, etc. throughout 

the park; along with having appropriate access points.  

 

3. Approval of minutes: June 1, 2015 

 

Motion by Mr. LeJeune to adopt the June 1, 2015 minutes as written.  Seconded by Mrs. 

Conaway.  Motion carried unanimously.  

Ashley Campbell arrived at 4:41 pm 

52



 

4. Surplus Property: Suzanne Henson 

 

Suzanne Henson noted there are two items under consideration for surplus - a Ford pickup and 

Caterpillar Backhoe/Loader no longer being used by city. She mentioned there should be a 

couple of Crown Victorias for approval next month.  

 

The Committee discussed the option of using the Crown Victorias in the community as staged 

police vehicles to deter speeding at some of the busy intersections.  

 

Motion by Mrs. Conaway to recommend the Resolutions for Surplus Property for adoption 

by the Council.  Seconded by Mr. LeJeune.  Motion carried unanimously.  

5. Civic Center, Bayfront, and CVB report (June): Margaret Thigpen  

 

Margaret Thigpen distributed and discussed her June report.  June 2015 revenue totaled 

$11,777.50, a decrease from June 2014 levels.  Year-to-date revenues stood at $125,361.50, 

below figures listed for FY2014.  Additionally, Ms. Thigpen reported total deposits for June 

stood at $15,529.00, and that the Civic Center has seen nine events during June, for a total of 

nine days used, not including setup days. Regarding the difference in revenue between 2015 and 

2014, Ms. Thigpen noted that the Savvy Moms event moved from June to July this year and a 

(2) day talent show did not host at Civic Center this year.  

 

Ms. Thigpen moved to Bayfront Pavilion, reporting revenues for June totaling $7,689.00, below 

June 2014 levels, and year-to-date revenues totaling $55,549.00, a decrease from 2014; 

however, she mentioned a rental rate increase happened this time last year to bring in more 

quality events that cost less in overall operations and repairs. Additionally, total deposits for 

June stood at $7,682.00, and that Bayfront Pavilion had seen 10 events during June, for a total 

of 10 days used, not including set up days.  

 

Also mentioned: 

  

 Councilman Scott asked for an update regarding replacing the windows at Bayfront 

Pavilion. Ms. Thigpen replied that they are still waiting for quotes from companies as 

part of the feasibility study requested by the Mayor. The Committee discussed in more 

detail either replacing windows as is or creating entire glass front.  

 Ms. Thigpen moved to the Taste of the Eastern Shore event reporting $5,000 in deposits 

for June and eight vendors signed up. The event had moved to a Thursday this year to 

better accommodate vendors, which appears to be helping with vendors signing up. 

 Ms. Thigpen provided an estimate of the economic impact of the Alabama Baptist 

Convention set in Daphne in November and distributed a calendar of upcoming City 

events. 

 Ms. Thigpen informed the Committee the chiller at the Civic Center had been struck by 

lightning and damaged over the weekend with currently no air conditioning available. 

(Pictures of damage included in packet.) She requested the Committee approve to 

reimburse Savvy Moms $725 rental fee for Monday and Tuesday rental since air 

conditioning is out. Ms. Henson said the reimbursed fee would be requested in the 

lightning insurance claim.   

 

53



Motion by Mr. Lake to reimburse current in-house group, Savvy Moms, $725 rental fee due 

to no air condition.  Seconded by Mr. Rudicell.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 

 Ms. Thigpen requested clarification on Ordinance 2014-16 community grants re: the 

Council reduced Taste of the Eastern Shore budget by $8,000 for FY2015. The 

Committee discussed reasons for ordinance and if changes are needed, and noted that 

the decrease should have communicated with organization when implemented.    

 

6. Building Inspection Monthly Reports (June):  Ashley Campbell 

 

Ashley Campbell reviewed the building report for the month of June. The department issued 109 

permits during June, with total job valuation of $3,600,922.62 with permit fees totaling 

$26,416.38. She reported fourteen new residential permits for the month, and noted Gunther 

came in this week and will be on next month’s report.  

 

Councilman Fry requested an update on the building behind Manci’s downtown that is an eye 

sore. Committee discussed options to alleviate the problem. Councilman Rudicell mentioned the 

need for a master plan for the Bayfront Park Pavilion, and that the Village Point Foundation 

could help with creating one. Councilman Davis stated it is not appropriate for a 

nongovernmental organization to tell the City how to spend funds. Committee discussed 

benefits of working with Village Point Foundation.  

 

7. Daphne Art Center Roof Repairs 

 

Richard Johnson presented Committee with proposal to repair the roofs of the Daphne Art 

Center that included quotes from multiple roofing vendors. Lowest bid submitted was $12,450; 

Mr. Johnson requested $13,000 to cover any additional unexpected items. Councilman Scott 

requested Mr. Johnson to touch base with Mr. Merchant in Building Inspection to ensure 

vendor has solid business reputation.  

 

Motion by Mr. Fry to refer this item to the Finance Committee and recommend it for a 

$13,000 appropriation.  Seconded by Ms. Conaway.  Motion carried unanimously.  

With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 5:29 by 

Chairman Davis. 

Next meeting will be held Monday, August 3rd at 4:30pm.  

54



55



56



57



58



59



60



 
 

CITY OF DAPHNE  

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT AGENDA 

JULY 2, 2015 - 6:00 P.M.  

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER – 6:00 p.m. 

 

2. CALL OF ROLL – Present W. Robison, F. Lamb, L. Cooke, W. Scully 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Approved 

  

 June 4, 2015   

  

4. OLD BUSINESS 

 

5. NEW BUSINESS - Denied 

 

Appeal #2015-03 Woodmen of the World  

 
A request for a Variance to the Daphne Land Use and 

Development Ordinance has been filed with the City of 

Daphne, Board of Zoning Adjustment. The Variance, if 

approved proposes to change the front yard setback of the 

metal building to nineteen point nine feet, in lieu of the 

required thirty-five feet, and change the front yard 

setback of the two-story house to twenty point five feet, 

in lieu of the required thirty-five feet for alterations to 

two existing nonconforming buildings as described in 

Article 9-2, 9-10 of the Land Use & Development Ordinance. 

The property is 1615 Sixth Street, which is zoned R-2, 

Medium Density, Single Family Residential.  

 

6. ADJOURNMENT – 7:25 p.m.  

61



RESOLUTION 2015 - 45 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 
 

WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items 
listed below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 

WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne that  

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
 

  DEPT EQ/VEH# DESCRIPTION     VIN

Bldg Maint 768 2000 FORD F150 PU 1FTRX17W7YNA79300

Sttreet 1143-L CATERPILLAR BACKHOE LOADER 430DITBML05453  
 

          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 

          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit      
               any and all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to                                
               direct the disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                     , 2015. 
           

      

                                                                                                                                                                                           

_____________________________ 

                                                                            Dane Haygood, Mayor 
                

 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

62



 

 

Resolution 2015-46 
 

Support of MPO Surface Transportation Funds to Install Intersection Improvements on County 

Road 13 at Sehoy Boulevard and Longue Vue Drive 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is a member Government of the Eastern Shore Metropolitan 

Planning Organization (MPO) which is the organization designated by the Governor of the State of Alabama 

as being responsible, together with the State of Alabama, for implementing the applicable provisions of 23 USC 

134 and 135 (amended by MAP-21 Sections 1201 and 1202, July 2012); 42 USC 2000d-1, 7401; 23 CFR 450 

and 500; 40 CFR 51 and 93; and 

  

WHEREAS, the Eastern Shore MPO was formed in June 2012 and has three years to allocate MPO 

Surface Transportation Project funds through the adoption of the 2040 Long Range Transportation Plan and 

FY16-19 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has submitted a project to install Intersection Improvements on 

County Road 13 at Sehoy Blvd. and Longue Vue Dr. (CR 13 Intersection Improvement Project) for inclusion 

in the FY 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CR 13 Intersection Improvement Project has been submitted for funding through MPO 

Surface Transportation Funds which require a twenty percent (20%) local match; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CR 13 Intersection Improvement Project has an estimated cost of $338,770 with an 

estimated local match of $67,765 (20%) to be provided by the City of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Eastern Shore Metropolitan Planning Organization Policy Board will consider 

approving the  use of MPO Surface Transportation Funds to fund CR 13 Intersection Improvement Project at 

their July 22, 2015 Board Meeting;  

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Daphne that: 

 

1.) The City of Daphne supports the funding of the CR 13 Intersection Improvement Project through MPO 

Surface Transportation Funds; and 

2.) The Mayor and the Director of Public Works are hereby authorized to execute all agreements, contracts 

and documents for CR 13 Intersection Improvement Project funded through MPO Surface 

Transportation Funds; and 

3.) If approved and awarded MPO Surface Transportation Funds for the CR 13 Intersection Improvement 

Project, the City will appropriate funds for the project equal to 20% of the survey, design, construction 

and CE&I (Total Project) cost in addition to 100% of all related utility relocations, and Right of Way 

acquisition costs, if any. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, 

THIS    DAY OF  , 2015. 

   

              

       DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

        

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

63



64



 

 

 
 

 

Date:                 Point of Contact:                      

Address:               

Phone:       Email:         

This Project was Recommended by (check one):         Citizen Working or Living within MPO Area 

      Advisory Committee Member               Public Official            Other_____________________________ 

Please provide the following information about the proposed project: 

Project Description and Location (include termini description, if road improvement) 

               

               

               

               

                

Reason for Proposed Project (Purpose and Need): 

               

                

Project Length (if applicable): 

                

Bicycle and Pedestrian or ADA Upgrades: 

               

                

Roadway Classification (if applicable):  Project Sponsor (i.e. Responsible Local Government): 

                

Percent (%) Local Match:    Match Source:        

                

 

Environmental Justice Issues or Concerns: 

                

                

                

EASTERN SHORE MPO 

PROJECT SUBMITTAL FORM 
 

FOR SUBMITTING A PROPOSED PROJECT FOR INCLUSION IN THE LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN (LRTP)  

OR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) 
 

Page 1 of 3 65



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For Internal (MPO or Project Sponsor) Use Only 
 

  

Scope of Work: Cost Estimate: 
Preliminary Engineering: 

 

 

 

 

 

Right-of-Way: 

 

 

 

 

 

Utilities: 

 

 

 

 

 

Construction: 

 

 

 

 

 

TOTAL COST:  
 

Project Map: 
 

Page 2 of 3 66



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For Internal (MPO or Project Sponsor Use Only) 
 

 Potential Funding Sources: 

1. ___________________________________ 2. ___________________________________ 

3. ___________________________________ 4. ___________________________________ 

5. ___________________________________ 6. ___________________________________ 

7. ___________________________________ 8. ___________________________________ 

 

Page 3 of 3 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee Recommendation: 

□  Recommend approval of the project as submitted for 

inclusion in the Visionary List of the LRTP 

□  Recommend approval of the project as submitted for 

inclusion in the Financially Constrained List of the LRTP 

□  Recommend approval of the project as submitted for 

inclusion in the TIP ________________________________ 

□  Recommend the Policy Board not approve the project 

□  Recommend the Policy Board postpone taking any action 

on the proposed project to give time for further review or to 

change the project scope: ____________________________ 

________________________________________________ 

 

Votes: 

 

Chair or Vice Chair Signature                                           Date 

 
Citizens Advisory Committee Recommendation: 

□  Recommend approval of the project as submitted for 

inclusion in the Visionary List of the LRTP 

□  Recommend approval of the project as submitted for 

inclusion in the Financially Constrained List of the LRTP 

□  Recommend approval of the project as submitted for 

inclusion in the TIP________________________________ 

□  Recommend the Policy Board not approve the project 

□  Recommend the Policy Board postpone taking any action 

on the proposed project to give time for further review or to 

change the project scope: ____________________________ 

________________________________________________ 

 

Votes: 

 

Chair or Vice Chair Signature                                           Date 

 
Technical Advisory Committee Recommendation: 

□  Recommend approval of the project as submitted for 

inclusion in the Visionary List of the LRTP 

□  Recommend approval of the project as submitted for 

inclusion in the Financially Constrained List of the LRTP 

□  Recommend approval of the project as submitted for 

inclusion in the TIP________________________________ 

□  Recommend the Policy Board not approve the project 

□  Recommend the Policy Board postpone taking any action 

on the proposed project to give time for further review or to 

change the project scope: ____________________________ 

________________________________________________ 

 

Votes: 

 

Chair or Vice Chair Signature                                           Date 

 

 
Policy Board Action: 

□  Approve the project as submitted for inclusion in the 

Visionary List of the LRTP  

□  Approve the project as submitted for inclusion in the 

Financially Constrained List of the LRTP 

□  Approve the project as submitted for inclusion in the TIP 

_________________________________________________ 

□  Choose not to approve the project 

□  Postpone taking any action on the proposed project to give 

time for further review or to change the project scope:______ 

_________________________________________________

_________________________________________________

_________________________________________________ 

 

Votes: 

 

Resolution Number: 

 67



CO
UN

TY
 R

D 
13

ST
AT

E 
HW

Y 1
81

WELL RD

PLEASANT RD

RIDGEWOOD DR

CHAMPIONS WAY

OTTAWA DR

WHISPERING PINES RD

BERGA LN

RAND AV

MARCHAND AV

PARKER LN

LAWSON RD

RIGSBY RD

CREEKWOOD DR

NORTH LAMHATTY LN

SEHOY BLVD

LONGUE VUE BLVD

ST
RA

TF
OR

D 
GL

EN
 D

R

BELGROVE AV

KNIGHT LN

ASHLEY CT

GREENWOOD DR

RILEYWOOD DR

PLANTATION DR

CANTERBURY RD

BA
IN

BR
ID

GE
 D

R

MARIKESH DRHOPE DR

ROSEWOOD LN

PECAN CT

PU
BL

IC
 W

OR
KS

 R
D

WIND CLAN TR

MARIE LN

ASPHODEL LN

APPACHE LN

MONTCLAIR LOOP

ROSEDOWN LN

LANDSDOWN DR

DUNBAR LOOP

CHERRYHILL RD
CA

PIT
AL

 D
R

RA
Y'S

 LN

SOMMERSET DR

LA
WS

ON
 R

D 
EX

T

HO
BB

Y H
OR

SE
 LN

FERNCLIFF CIR

AVON CIR E

JACKSON WAY

KINGSWOOD DR FERNWOOD CIR

PARLANGE LN

VOLOVECKY DR

FELICITY LN

JESSICA LN

LACHLAN CT

MERRITT LNMAYOR ST

MONIAC CV

MONTCLAIR LOOP

Project Vicinity Map
Legend

CENTERLINES
Parcels
<all other values>

CITYNAME
Bay Minette
Daphne
Elberta
Fairhope
Foley
Gulf Shores
Loxley
Magnolia Springs
Orange Beach
Perdido Beach
Robertsdale
Silverhill
Spanish Fort
Summerdale
BaldwinCountyBnd

0 1,500 3,000750
FeetI

Project Location
Daphne, AL

68



Project:

ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT QTY UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 CONCRETE REMOVAL (206-A) LS 1 1,500.00$            1,500.00$            

2 ASPHALT SAW CUTTING (E.P.) LF 500 5.00$                   2,500.00$            

3 UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION (210-A) CY 720 6.50$                   4,680.00$            

4 GRANULAR SOIL BASE COURSE, TYPE A, 

ROAD MIXED, MIN. 4" COMPACTED 

THICKNESS (FROM STOCKPILES) (301-A)

SY 2,362 2.20$                   5,196.40$            

5 CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE, TYPE B, PLANT 

MIXED, 6" COMPACTED THISCKNESS (301-A)

SY 2,600 22.00$                 57,200.00$          

6 TACK COAT (0.05 GALLONS PER SY) (405-A) GAL 120 5.00$                   600.00$               

7 MILLING/PLANING EXISTING PAVEMENT (1.5" 

DEEP - MAX) (408-A)

SY 116 7.50$                   870.00$               

8 BITUMINOUS CONCRETE WEARING SURFACE 

LAYER, 3/4" MAX AGGREGATE SIZE, ESAL 

RANGE B, (165#/SY) (429-A)

TON 391 88.00$                 34,408.00$          

9 BITUMINOUS CONCRETE BINDER LAYER, 3/4" 

MAX AGGREGATE SIZE, ESAL RANGE B, 

(220#/SY) (429-B)

TON 286 90.00$                 25,740.00$          

10 TOPSOIL, 4" COMPACTED THICKNESS        

(650-A)

CY 223 13.25$                 2,954.75$            

11 SOLID SODDING (654-A) SY 1,338 5.00$                   6,690.00$            

12 SOLID WHITE, CLASS 2, TYPE A, TRAFFIC 

STRIPE, 5" WIDE (701-A)

MILE 0.72 5,000.00$            3,600.00$            

13 DOTTED WHITE, CLASS 2, TYPE A, TRAFFIC 

STRIPE, 5" WIDE (701-B)

MILE 0.04 5,000.00$            200.00$               

14 SOLID YELLOW (DOUBLE), CLASS 2, TYPE A, 

TRAFFIC STRIPE, 5" WIDE(701-A)

MILE 0.34 5,000.00$            1,700.00$            

15 TRAFFIC CONTROL MARKINGS (CHEVRONS), 

YELLOW, CLASS 2, TYPE A (703-A)

SF 700.00 7.50$                   5,250.00$            

16 TRAFFIC CONTROL MARKINGS (STOP BAR), 

WHITE, CLASS 2, TYPE A (703-A)

SF 48.00 7.50$                   360.00$               

17 TRAFFIC CONTROL MARKINGS (CHANNEL 

LINE), WHITE, CLASS 2, TYPE A (703-A)

SF 267.00 7.50$                   2,002.50$            

18 TRAFFIC CONTROL LEGENDS (ARROW), 

WHITE, CLASS 2, TYPE A  (703-B)

SF 102 7.50$                   765.00$               

19 TRAFFIC CONTROL LEGENDS (ONLY), WHITE, 

CLASS 2, TYPE A,  (703-B)

SF 100 7.50$                   750.00$               

20 REFLECTIVE PAVEMENT MARKERS, CLASS A-

H, TYPE 1-B (705-A)

EA 430 5.00$                   2,150.00$            

21 REFLECTIVE PAVEMENT MARKERS, CLASS A-

H, TYPE 2-E (705-A)

EA 300 5.00$                   1,500.00$            

22 REFLECTIVE PAVEMENT MARKERS, CLASS A-

H, TYPE 2-E (705-A)

EA 287 6.00$                   1,722.00$            

23 CONCRETE CURB, TYPE M-2 (623-B) LF 250 17.50$                 4,375.00$            

24 CONCRETE CURB, TYPE M-3 (623-B) LF 250 17.50$                 4,375.00$            

25 22"x13" RCAP (DOUBLE) (531-A) LF 800 60.00$                 48,000.00$          

26 GRATE TOP INLET (621-C) EA 2 4,000.00$            8,000.00$            

27 JUNCTION BOX (621-A) EA 2 3,500.00$            7,000.00$            

28 CONCRETE SLOPE PAVED HEADWALLS 

(22"x13")

EA 2 750.00$               1,500.00$            

29 MOBILIZATION (600-A) (7.0% of Const.) LS 1 16,491.21$          16,491.21$          

29 EROSION CONTROL (2.5% of Const.) LS 1 5,889.72$            5,889.72$            

30 TRAFFIC CONTROL (740-A) (6.0% of Const.) LS 1 14,135.32$          14,135.32$          

272,104.89$        

Item # Description Unit Quantity Unit Price Amount

1 Engineering Survey & Design (9.5% of Const.) Each 1 $25,849.96 $25,849.96

2 Material Testing (2.5% of Construction) Each 1 $6,802.62 $6,802.62

3 Engineering - CE&I (12.5% of Construction) Each 1 $34,013.11 $34,013.11

$66,665.70

$312,920.62

Not Eligible for ESMPO Reimbursement

Estimated Professional Service Cost 

Estimated Total Cost (Less Engineering Survey and Design)

CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE

County Road 13 Turn Lanes @ Sehoy & French Settlement

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST:

Professional Services Calculations 

69



70



 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2015-47 
 

A Resolution Authorizing Issuance of  
Credit Cards: Senior Programs & Recreation Department 

 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 1996-45 adopted July 15, 1996, authorized the issuance 
of a City of Daphne credit card to certain department heads; and 
  
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne now deems it necessary to authorize the issuance 
of an additional credit card for the Senior Programs & Recreation and associated 
events. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Daphne that Section 1 of Resolution 1996-45 is hereby amended to 
include Senior Programs & Recreation.  All other provisions of Resolution 1996-45 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this ______ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Dane Haygood, Mayor 
      
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk 

71



RESOLUTION 2015-48 
 

DAPHNE RECREATIONAL FACILITIES: ENGINEERING SERVICES FEE 
SCHEDULE 

 
 

WHEREAS, Resolution 2013-36 established a contract for Project Engineering 
Services with four engineering firms; and 
 
WHEREAS, three of these selected engineering firms have been approved to 
provide engineering services for the new Recreational Facilities: 

 Project Program Manager - Volkert & Associates 

 Grass Athletic Consultant - Lose & Associates (HMR) 

 Tennis Courts – Hatch Mott McDonald 
 
WHEREAS, Volkert and Associates and City staff will be presenting a project 
scope to the Mayor and Council for approval; and 
 
WHEREAS; once the scope is approved a construction estimate can be obtained to 
base engineering fees on; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, that  
 

1) The City hereby creates an exception to the assignment protocol 
established in Resolution 2013-36 in regards to the new recreational 
facilities project only; and 
 

2) the City hereby assigns the following engineering firms for the following 
tasks related to the new recreational facilities:   
Project Program Manager - Volkert & Associates 
Grass Athletic Consultant - Lose & Associates (HMR) 
Tennis Courts – Hatch Mott McDonald; and 
 

3) the City hereby adopts and incorporates the prior executed contracts, 
herein attached as Exhibit A to this Resolution, including but not limited to 
the terms and fee schedule in Resolution 2013-36 for engineering services  
with the three aforementioned engineering firms for the Recreational 
Facilities project; and  
 

4) the payment basis (cost plus, percentage, or fixed amount) shall be 
approved contemporaneously with or after the scope of work is approved 
by the Mayor and Council; and 
 

5) the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute all related documents. 
 

72



6) This resolution shall become effective upon proper passage and 
execution. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this ___ day of ______, 2015. 
 
 

             
      Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



ORDINANCE 2015-40  
 
 

Daphne Art Center Roof Repair 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 
Budget on September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Daphne Art Center has had issues with the roof leaking during rain 
storms, and 
 
WHEREAS, certain improvements and repairs are needed at the Daphne Art 
Center to maintain and protect the building. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $13,000 from the General Fund is hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget for roof repairs of at 
the Daphne Art Center. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS               day of                      , 2015. 
 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                          Dane Haygood, Mayor 
          
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

96



ORDINANCE 2015 - 41 
Justice Center Generator Replacement/Repair 

 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 
Budget on September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the generator  at the Justice Center was damaged and stopped 
working after a severe rain storm; and  
 
WHEREAS, this generator powers all of the Justice Center including critical 
operations including 911, Dispatch, and the Jail; and 
 
WHEREAS,   an emergency rental generator had to be installed to continue these 
critical operations until repairs or replacement of the generator could be made, and 
 
WHEREAS,  claim has been made under the City’s insurance policy to repair or 
replace the damaged generator and payment is pending. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby amended to include a 
General Fund appropriation in the amount up to $24,380 for the repair or 
replacement of the Justice Center generator.  
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
this ________ day of ___________________, 2015. 
 
               

________________________________ 
                                                                 Dane Haygood, Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

97



ORDINANCE 2015-42 
 

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATIONN FOR: GRANT MANAGEMENT FOR THE 
TIAWASEE CREEK COASTAL IMPACT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (CIAP), 

NATIONAL FISH AND WILDLIFE FOUNDATION (NFWF) &  
ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT (ADEM) 

GRANT TIAWASEE CREEK WATERSHED RESTORATION 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 
Budget on September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has obtained grant management assistance with large grants 
($500,000.00+) to ensure compliance with all federal, state and local grant 
requirements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City’s attorney and finance department recommended that a grant 
manager be hired to manage the Tiawasee Creek Watershed Restoration project; 
and grant management services have been obtained for the original $1,000,000 
grant award; and 
 
WHEREAS, appropriation in the amount of $25,000 for the procurement of a grant 
manger to assist with its CIAP-NFWF grant project was approved in Ordinance 
2015-05, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City anticipates receiving an additional $1,000,000 in ADEM / 
NFWF funding ($300,000 for the Tiawasee Creek project and $700,000 for the Trione 

Park Watershed Enhancement project) to bring the grant total to approximately 
$2,000,000. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that  

1. the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby amended to include an additional 
General Fund appropriation in the amount of $15,000.00 for the procurement 
of the grant manger to assist with its ADEM portion of the grant project.   

2. The appropriation is subject to the ADEM 319 grant being awarded to the 
City.  

3. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute all agreements required for the 
completion of these projects. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this __ day of ____________, 2015. 
        
                                        
                                                            _________________________________ 
                                                             Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

98



ORDINANCE 2015 - 43 
 

D’Olive Boulevard Resurfacing 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 
Budget on September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City 
to obtain quotes for this project; and 
 
WHEREAS, an appropriation is needed in the amount of  $33,695 (Construction - 
$30,770 + $2,925  engineering fees & survey/testing/inspection. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is 
hereby amended to include an additional appropriation in the amount of $33,695 
from Capital Reserve Fund for the D’Olive Boulevard Resurfacing project. 
    
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this ___ day of ______, 2015. 
 
 
 
             

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

99



 
 
 

ORDINANCE 2015-44 
 

APPROPRIATION : DAPHNE HIGH SCHOOL PROJECT: RECORDING OF 
CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS  

 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 
Budget on September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne recognizes Daphne High School, and the 
importance of its programs to the City and the citizens of Daphne. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, that that funds from the General Fund up to the amount of 
$10,000 are hereby appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget 
for purchase equipment to allow the students enrolled in the Daphne High School 
media program record the City of Daphne Council Meetings. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2015. 
 
         
 

                                                                      ____________________________ 
           Dane Haygood, Mayor    
 
     
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

100


	July 20   Agenda
	ROLL CALL SHEET
	Council Minutes
	Council Work Session Minutes
	Backup to Work Session Mintues
	Beautification Award 3rd Quater July 20 2015 
	Finance Minutes - Final
	Backup to Finance Minutes July 20 2015
	Buildings & Property Minutes
	Beautification & Museum Minutes
	BZA Minutes
	BZA Staff Report II
	2015-45 - RES - GOVDEALS
	2015-46 - RES - ESMPO Intersection Improvements on County Road 13 at Sehoy Boulevard and Longue Vue Drive
	Backup to 2015-46 -  #1 - Sehoy TL Letter 05-27-2015
	Backup to 2015-46 - RES - CR13 -TL ESMPO Project Work Sheet 06-03-2015
	2015-47 - RES - Credit Card - Senior Programs
	2015-48 - RES - Recreational Facilites-Engineering Services fee schedule
	Backup to 2015-48 - RES - #2 - Volkert Scope of Services - Phase I Master Planing 7-17-2015
	Backup to 2015-48 - Signed Volkert - Engineering Services Agreement
	2015-40 - ORD - DAC Roof Repair-Art Guild
	2015-41 - ORD - PD Generator replacment-insurance claim
	2015-42 - ORD - CIAP Grant Managment Ext-Tiawasee Creek-Add'l Services
	2015-43 - ORD - D'Olive Blvd Resurfacing
	2015-44 - ORD - DHS Project-Equipment for Recording Council Meetings

	Address: City of Daphne; P.O. Box 400; Daphne, AL 36526
	This Project was Recommended by check one: Off
	Citizen Working or Living within MPO Area: 
	Advisory Committee Member: On
	Public Official: On
	Other: Off
	Project Description and Location include termini description if road improvement 1: County Road 13 -  Intersection improvements at the entrances of Sehoy (Sehoy Blvd) and French Settlement (Longue Vue Blvd)
	Project Description and Location include termini description if road improvement 2: Subdivisions. Project consists of widening the roadbed to accomodate left turn and right turn deceleration lanes. Work will entail 
	Project Description and Location include termini description if road improvement 3: piping of open ditches, drainage, curbing, shoulder/base/pavement build up, asphalt overlayment, striping/markings, topsoil and sod. 
	Project Description and Location include termini description if road improvement 4: The project lies within Sections 9 and 10, Township 5 South, Range 2 East, in the City of Daphne, Baldwin County, Alabama.
	Project Description and Location include termini description if road improvement 5: 
	Reason for Proposed Project Purpose and Need 1: County Road 13 (Urban Collector) is a major north south link for students and work commuters. The lack of turn lanes at the entrances
	Reason for Proposed Project Purpose and Need 2: of these subdivisons creates stacking during peak hrs. Turn lanes will decrease travel times and improve roadway capacity & safety.
	Project Length if applicable: 1550 linear feet or 0.3 Miles
	Bicycle and Pedestrian or ADA Upgrades 1: Subject roadway is currently under consideration for FY2015 TAP Grant for multi-use pathway - full ADA compliance.
	Bicycle and Pedestrian or ADA Upgrades 2: 
	Roadway Classification if applicable: Urban Collector
	Project Sponsor ie Responsible Local Government: City of Daphne
	Percent  Local Match: 20%
	Match Source: Capital Reserves and/or General Fund
	Environmental Justice Issues or Concerns 1: None
	Environmental Justice Issues or Concerns 2: 
	Environmental Justice Issues or Concerns 3: 
	Date: 06-03-2015
	Point of Contact: Richard D. Johnson
	Phone: 251-621-3182
	Email: rjohnson@daphneal.com
	Cost Estimate: Right-of-Way: $0.00
	Cost Estimate: Preliminary Engineering: $25,849.96
	Cost Estimate: Utilities: $0.00
	TOTAL COST: $338,770.58
	Cost Estimate: Construction: $312,920.62
	Scope: Preliminary Engineering: (Survey & Design) plus Geo-Technical Investigation (9.5%)
	Scope: Right-of-way: None Required
	Scope: Utilities: No conflicts anticipated
	Scope: Construction: Construction:                  $272,104.89Testing & CE&I (15%)    $  40,815.73
	Text1: See Attached
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 


